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Report to Planning and Environment Committee 

To: Chair and Members 
 Planning & Environment Committee  
From: G. Kotsifas P. Eng.,  
 Managing Director, Development & Compliance Services And 

Chief Building Official 
Subject: 905 Sarnia Road Inc. 
 1233 and 1237 Sandbar Street 

Removal of Holding Provisions (h-82) 
Meeting on: November 12, 2018 

Recommendation 

That, on the recommendation of the Senior Planner, Development Services the following 
actions be taken with respect to the application of 905 Sarnia Inc. relating to the properties 
located at 1233 and 1237 Sandbar Street the attached proposed by-law BE 
INTRODUCED at the Municipal Council meeting on November 20, 2018 to amend Zoning 
By-law No. Z.-1 in conformity with the Official Plan to change the zoning of 1233 and 1237 
Sandbar Street FROM a Holding Residential R1 Special Provision (h-82*R1-13 (3)) Zone 
TO a Residential R1 Special Provision (R1-13 (3)) Zone to remove the h-82 holding 
provision.   

Executive Summary 

Summary of Request 

The applicant has requested the removal of the h-82 holding provision to allow for the 
consideration of building permits on two single detached dwelling lots.    

Rationale of Recommended Action 

1. The removal of the holding provisions will allow for development in conformity with 
the Zoning By-law Z.-1. 

2. The proposed part blocks have been registered and consolidated with the abutting 
lands. Removal of the h-82 holding provision is appropriate at this time.  
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Analysis 

Location Map
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Plan of Subdivision (33M-747) 
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2.0 Description of Proposal 

2.1  Development Proposal 
To requested holding provision removal would allow for the consideration of building 
permits on two single detached dwelling lots.     

3.0 Revelant Background 

3.1  Planning History 
On March 6, 2018, Council approved the removal of holding provisions for the balance 
of the lands within this subdivision (33M-747). The h-82 holding provision was retained 
on these parcels to ensure that the issue related to the consolidation of part lots with the 
abutting lands would be addressed. 

4.0 Key Issues and Considerations  

Why is it Appropriate to remove the Holding Provision     
 
h-82 Holding Provision 
 
The (h-82) holding provision states that: 
 
“To ensure that there is a consistent lotting pattern in this area, the “h-82” symbol shall not 
be deleted until the part block has been consolidated with adjacent lands.” 

The h-82 holding provision was applied at the time of subdivision approval for the partial 
lots in this Plan of Subdivision (33M-596) which was registered in September 2008 and on 
the partial lots in the abutting Plan of Subdivision (33M-747) which was registered August 
7, 2018. The holding provision was applied to the lands to ensure that the part lot/blocks 
would be consolidated and result in a lotting pattern that is consistent with the abutting 
parcels and bring both consolidated parcels into compliance  with the regulations of the 
existing zoning. 

The applicant has provided the City with records of the transfer and consolidation of part 
blocks under one ownership to create developable lots (as shown on the map below).  
 
 
 
  

33M-596 33M-747 

Consolidated Parcels 
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5.0 Conclusion 

Given that blocks in the two abutting subdivisions (33M-596 and 33M-747) have been 
consolidated ,it is appropriate to consider the removal of the h-82 holding provision from 
these blocks at this time.  

 

 

Note:  The opinions contained herein are offered by a person or persons 
qualified to provide expert opinion. Further detail with respect to qualifications 
can be obtained from Development Services 

November 6, 2018 
CS\ 
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Prepared and 
Recommended by: 

 
C. Smith, MCIP, RPP 
Senior Planner, Development Services 

Reviewed by: 

 Lou Pompilii, MCIP, RPP 
Manager, Development Planning (Subdivision) 

Concurred in by:  
 
 
 
Paul Yeoman, RPP, PLE 
Director, Development Services 

Submitted by: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
George Kotsifas, P.ENG  
Managing Director, Development and Compliance 
Services and Chief Building Official 
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Appendix A 

Appendix "(A)" 

      Bill No. (Number to be inserted by 
       Clerk's Office) 

       2018 
 
    By-law No. Z.-1-   
 
    A by-law to amend By-law No. Z.-1 to 

remove holding provision from the zoning 
of the land located at 1233 and 1237 
Sandbar Street 

 
  WHEREAS 905 Sarnia Inc. has applied to remove the holding provisions 
from the zoning for the land located at 1233 and 1237 Sandbar Street, as shown on the 
map attached to this by-law, as set out below; 
 
  AND WHEREAS it is deemed appropriate to remove the holding provisions 
from the zoning of the said land; 
 
  THEREFORE the Municipal Council of The Corporation of the City of 
London enacts as follows: 
 
1.  Schedule "A" to By-law No. Z.-1 is amended by changing the zoning 
applicable to the lands located at 1233 and 1237 Sandbar Street, as shown on the 
attached map to remove the holding provisions so that the zoning of the lands as a 
Residential R1 Special Provision (R1-13 (3)) Zone comes into effect. 
 
2.  This By-law shall come into force and effect on the date of passage. 
 
  PASSED in Open Council on, November 20, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
       Matt Brown 
       Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
       Catharine Saunders 
       City Clerk  
  
 
 
 
 
 
First Reading    – November 20, 2018 
Second Reading – November 20, 2018 
Third Reading   – November 20, 2018 
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Appendix B – Public Engagement 

Community Engagement 

Public liaison: Notice of the application was published in the Londoner on November 1, 
2018 

0 replies were received 

Nature of Liaison: City Council intends to consider removing the h-82 holding 
provisions from the lands. The holding h-82 symbol shall not be deleted until the part 
block has been consolidated with adjacent lands to the satisfaction of the City. Council 
will consider removing the holding provision as it applies to these lands no earlier than 
November 12, 2018. 
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Appendix C 

Zoning Map 
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